Minutes

of a meeting of the



Planning Committee

held at the Council Chamber, Abbey House, Abingdon on Wednesday, 25 April, 2012 at 6.30pm

Open to the public, including the press

Present:

Members: Councillors Robert Sharp (Chairman), John Morgan (Vice-Chair), John Woodford, Roger Cox, Anthony Hayward, Bob Johnston, Sue Marchant, John Morgan (Vice-Chair), Jerry Patterson, Margaret Turner, Eric Batts, Bill Jones, Sandy Lovatt, Helen Pighills and Kate Precious.

Substitute Member: Councillor Ron Mansfield.

Officers: Susan Harbour, Martin Deans, Laura Hudson, George Reade, Sarah Commins and Mike Gilbert.

Number of members of the public: 30

PI.190 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The chairman gave housekeeping announcements, outlined the procedure and explained the remit of the committee.

PI.191 URGENT BUSINESS

None.

PI.192 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES AND APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Councillor Jenny Hannaby sent her apologies and Councillor Ron Mansfield attended as a substitute.

PI.193 MINUTES

Vale Of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 28 March 2012 were agreed subject to a textual amendment to item PI188 giving detail of Councillor Woodford's concerns about the proposal.

PI.194 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Agenda Item	Councillor/s	Nature of interest	Reason
9	Robert Sharp	Personal	Knows chairman of the parish meeting and the land owner
	Jerry Patterson	Personal	Is a member of the Campaign to Protect Rural England (CPRE) who are objecting the application, but he has not involved with this campaign
10	Bob Johnston, Jerry Patterson, Helen Pighills, John Woodford, Sue Marchant, Roger Cox, Bill Jones, Margaret Turner	Personal	Know the applicant's agent, Ken Dijksman

PI.195 STATEMENTS AND PETITIONS FROM THE PUBLIC ON PLANNING APPLICATIONS

A list of speakers was tabled at the meeting.

PI.196 STATEMENTS, PETITIONS AND QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC ON OTHER MATTERS

None.

PI.197 MATERIALS

None.

PI.198 LAND EAST OF A338, GARFORD. CONSTRUCTION OF NEW CREMATORIUM WITH NEW ACCESS, PARKING, GARDENS OF REMEMBRANCE AND PROVISION OF LAND FOR NATURAL BURIALS. P11/V2453

The officer introduced his report.

Robert Treadgold, from Garford village parish meeting spoke in objection to the application. He felt that there should be an adjournment to look in more detail at the application; he said that he had the overwhelming support of Garford residents. He summarised the arguments put forward by the parish meeting in objection to the application.

Vale Of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

Catherine Petts, from the Campaign to Protect Rural England (CPRE) spoke in objection to the application. She felt that this area was an historic landscape which should be protected from development and suburbanisation, and that an alternative site should be found nearer to a town.

Howard Hodgson, chairman of Memoria, the applicant, spoke in favour of the application. He summarised his company's written submissions and argued that the company would not be making the financial investment if it did not believe that there was enough of a need to justify the return on the investment.

Matthew Barber, ward councillor, was unable to be present, but a written statement from him was read out by the chairman of the planning committee. His concerns were about the potential increase in traffic to the area; whether the "need" for the crematorium had been adequately demonstrated; the fact that this application is contrary to the local plan and whether there were more suitable sites.

A lengthy debate ensued; it was also explained to the Garford residents the role and remit of the committee as a quasi-judicial committee and the matters which could and could not be taken into consideration for planning purposes.

The committee considered traffic issues with regard to the fact that there will be significant population growth, particularly around Grove, over the next few years. It was acknowledged that the county highways engineer had factored in the population growth and that the expected traffic increase is still within acceptable limits. One of the attractions of this site is the good visibility at the access onto the public highway.

Concerns were raised about the potential for flooding as the site had flooded in 2007 and was a possible flood risk. The Environment Agency had not objected to the site as it is not considered to be a 1 in 100 year flood risk.

The committee accepted the potential availability of other sites available does not need to be considered if this site is acceptable on its own merits. It also accepted that the application meets the criteria for being considered as an exception to local plan policies.

Concerns were raised about the adequacy of car parking and this will need to be monitored.

RESOLVED (For 13; Against 2; Abstentions 0)

To authorise the head of planning, in consultation with the chairman and vicechairman, to grant planning permission, subject to the following conditions:

i) The completion of a planning obligation to secure a financial contribution to public transport

ii) Conditions to include external materials, landscaping, boundary treatments, slab and site levels, access and road widening, bus stops, footways, parking, lighting, ecology, archaeology, and drainage.

PI.199 LAND SOUTH OF ALFREDS PLACE, EAST HANNEY. ERECTION OF 15 DWELLINGS WITH ASSOCIATED ACCESS ROADS, GARAGES AND OPEN SPACE. P11/V2103

The officer introduced her report. Since the report was produced there had been further s106 discussions and there was a requirement for further contribution of £2550 to pay for waste bins for the new residents. The officer acknowledged that the proposal was contrary to policies in the local plan but had been bought forward because the council were unable to demonstrate an adequate five year housing supply. The council had recently lost an appeal and costs on this basis at the Broadwater site on the edge of Wantage. This development could be delivered quickly and would supply 40 percent affordable housing. This development would deliver 15 units.

The council's landscape officer has raised no objections. The site is located in a flood zone 2. The applicants had carried out a flood risk assessment and confirmed that the hard surface areas would be water permeable. Both the Environment Agency and the council's drainage engineer now raised no objections on flooding grounds. The county highways engineer is satisfied with highways and parking.

An additional condition needs to be imposed on the permission giving a time limit to implement the permission of one year.

There was no further update from the housing officer on the tenure mix for the affordable housing.

Mr Brian Cooper, who lives at no 8 Alfred's Place, spoke in objection to the application. He said that the site is a green field site and that it has flooded in both 2007 and 2008. The undeveloped nature of the application site had prevented flooding on the Alfred's Place site and was, therefore, important to prevent flooding of neighbouring dwellings.

Ken Dijksman, the applicant's agent, spoke in favour of the application. He noted that flooding was an issue in the Hanneys and that a lot of work had been done to address the issue.

The chairman of the committee read out a statement from the ward councillor, Matthew Barber, who raised concerns about the potential for flooding of the site and sought assurances from officers that they would continue to monitor the situation. He also wanted to be included in the discussions about conditions and the s106 agreements.

RESOLVED (For 15; Against 0; Abstentions 0)

To authorise the head of planning, in consultation with the committee chairman and vice chairman, and the ward member, to grant planning permission. This subject to a S106 agreement with both the county council and district council in order to secure contributions towards local infrastructure and to secure the affordable housing and to the following conditions:

- 1. TL1 Time Limit one year
- 2. MC2 Material Samples (panels on site)
- 3. MC9 Building details windows, doors, rainwater goods, etc
- 4. Restriction on PD (plots 1-9 only)
- 5. MC24 Drainage details

Vale Of White Horse District Council – Planning Committee Minutes

6. Communal satellite dish for plots 1 - 6

PI.200 CHALLOW PARK STUDIOS, CHALLOW PARK, CHALLOW ROAD, EAST CHALLOW. DEMOLITION OF EXISTING COTTAGE. ERECTION OF NEW THREE BEDROOM DWELLING. P11/V2878

The officer introduced her report.

The committee discussed the report and the relevant policy and guidance.

RESOLVED: (For 13; Against 2; Abstentions 0)

To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions:

- 1. TL1 Time Limit
- 2. MC2 Material Samples
- 3. MC9 Building details windows, doors, rainwater goods, etc
- 4. Restriction on PD
- 5. MC24 Drainage details
- 6. LS1 Landscaping Scheme (Submission)
- 7. LS2 Landscaping Scheme (Implementation)
- 8. LS4 Tree Protection

PI.201 THAMES VIEW, MILLWAY LANE, APPLETON. APPLICATION TO REMOVE PLANNING OBLIGATION ATTACHED TO PLANNING PERMISSION P80/V1401 WHICH APPLIED AN AGRICULTURAL OCCUPANCY RESTRICTION AND A TIE TO THE LAND. P11/V1730/DPO

The officer introduced his report.

The committee discussed the report.

RESOLVED (For 15; Against 0; Abstentions 0)

To authorise the head of planning, in consultation with the chairman and vicechairman, to remove the planning obligation.

PI.202 10 HARWELL ROAD, SUTTON COURTENAY. REPLACEMENT OF VELUX WINDOW WITH DORMER (AMENDMENT TO PLANNING APPROVAL 06/01695/FUL). P12/V0252

The officer introduced his report.

RESOLVED (For 15; Against 0; Abstentions 0)

To grant planning permission subject to the following conditions:

- 1. TL1 time limit full application
- 2. Planning condition listing the approved drawings

Vale Of White Horse District Council - Planning Committee Minutes

3. MC1 – materials (details)

PI.203 CHANDLERS CLOSE, ABINGDON. CONFIRMATION OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 10-2011.

The officer introduced his report.

Mrs Bennett, spoke in objection to this order on the basis of her written submissions.

Councillor Sandy Lovatt, standing in for ward councillor Peter Jones who is unwell, spoke in objection to the order and supported Mrs Bennett's concerns.

There followed a discussion which concluded that the trees had a high public amenity value and that the risk of damage to the garages was a matter of conjecture. It was also considered that the current problems created by the trees did not outweigh their amenity value. It was acknowledged that the trees could be managed to reduce the problems, as long as the council's arboriculturalist was consulted first.

RESOLVED (For 13; Against 2; Abstentions 0)

To confirm Tree Preservation Order 10-2011.

PI.204 CERTIFICATE OF LAWFUL DEVELOPMENT

RESOLVED (For 15; Against 0; Abstentions 0)

To authorise the head of planning, in consultation with the chairman and the vicechairman, to determine all future applications for certificates of lawful development.

The meeting closed at 8.20 am